






2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
Jan 1,034 1,123 1,231 1,263 1,157 1,516 1,600

Feb 1,026 913 1,034 1,155 1,152 1,141 1,303

March 1,080 1,128 1,093 1,151 1,121 1,328 1,428

April 1,036 1,071 1,127 1,182 1,127 1,302 1,376

May 1,084 1,138 1,203 1,223 1,169 1,512 1,577

June 1,121 1,208 1,183 1,233 1,310 1,431 1,509

July 1,099 1,214 1,234 1,271 1,366 1,546 1,575

Aug 1,132 1,183 1,218 1,332 1,338 1,641 1,557

Sept 1,118 1,091 1,095 1,245 1,277 1,563 1,422

Oct 1,083 1,088 1,183 1,163 1,348 1,551 1,413

Nov 983 1,074 1,134 1,224 1,285 1,570 1,440

Dec 1,085 1,177 1,222 1,211 1,622 1,713 1,615
Avg 1,073 1,117 1,163 1,221 1,273 1,485 1,485

TOTAL 12,881 13,408 13,957 14,653 15,272 17,814 17,815

800
900

1,000
1,100
1,200
1,300
1,400
1,500
1,600
1,700
1,800

UNIT WORKLOAD
2016 2017 2018 2019

2020 2021 2022



2020 2021 2022
Total Call Volume (In-District) 13,016 15,146 14,946
TOTALFIRES 159 156 146

Structure 15 10 10
Structure; confined 37 32 35
Mobile/Portable Structure 12 20 20
Vehicle 26 25 15
Wildland/Brush/Grass 41 42 44
Trash/Other 28 27 22

EMS 8,418 10,102 9,983
OTHER 4,135 4,893 4,813
Automatic Aid:

PFDto CAFMA 804 890 864
CAFMA to PFD 1,469 1,706 1,761



Fires
0.98%

EMS
66.79%

Haz-Mat
1.00%

Service
19.93%

Good Intent
7.84%

False 
Alarm/Other

3.47%

BLS =  3,937
ALS =  7,075
Transports =  7,660



INCIDENT TYPE TOTAL

321 EMS Call 9,316

554 Assist Invalid 1,699

553 Public Service 671

611 Cancelled en Route 661

622 No Incident Found on Arrival 309

322 Vehicle Accident with Injuries 235

311 Medical Assist 208

324 Motor Vehicle Accident With No Injuries 192

551 Assist Police or Other Gov't Agency 167

733 Smoke Detector Activation due to Malfunction 136

561 Unauthorized Burning 127

735 Alarm System Sounded Due to Malfunction 120

745 Alarm System Sounded; No Fire – Unintentional 107

510 Person in Distress 106

412 Gas Leak (Natural Gas or LPG) 74

671 HazMat release investigation w/no HazMat 60

541 Animal Problem 57

651 Smoke Scare; Odor of Smoke 55

631 Authorized controlled burning 49

552 Police Matter 43

INCIDENT SERIES TOTAL

100 Fire 146

200 Overpressure/Explosion/Overheat 4

300  EMS/Rescue 9,983

400 Hazardous Condition 149

500  Service Call 2,978

600  Good Intent Call 1,172

700  False Alarm/False Call 502

800 Severe Weather/Natural Disaster 10

900 Special Incident/Citizen Complaint 2



Station 50 1,753 (-2.9%)

Station 51 410 (-13.7%)

Station 53 2,247 (+1.1%)

Station 54 2,257 (-1.5%)

Station 57 567 (-8.6%)

Station 58 1,696 (-0.9%)

Station 59 1,829 (-3.4%)

AVG Calls per Day   38.95
by CAFMA Stations

Station 61 1,149 (+1.3%)

Station 62 1,756 (+9.1%)

Station 63 555 (-6.6%)

Station 71 164 (-30.2%)

Station 72 62 (-26.2%)

Station 73 181 (+60.2%)

Station 74 42 (-8.7%)

Station 75 256 (+41.4%)

AVG Calls per Day     40.95
in CAFMA Districts  



E50
& T50

E51 E53 E540 E54 E57 E58 E59 E61 E62 E63 B3 B6
0

500

1,000

1,500

2,000

2,500

3,000
2019 2020 2021 2022

The workload includes calls CAFMA engines ran in CAFMA districts and other jurisdictions.  
(Prescott, Williamson Valley, Walker, and all Out-of-District)

Average Responses per day: 51.42



Engine E50 E51 E53 E54 E57 E58 E59 E61 E62 E63

1st Qtr 76.99% 67.73% 74.91% 86.06% 89.68% 76.28% 85.95% 80.90% 79.09% 91.13%

2nd Qtr 67.25% 69.11% 77.59% 88.85% 87.39% 73.41% 86.05% 80.00% 77.07% 90.08%

3rd Qtr 71.53% 70.29% 75.00% 86.52% 89.78% 78.49% 87.80% 82.20% 83.47% 93.38%

4th Qtr 65.56% 66.01% 70.41% 86.65% 86.16% 75.74% 84.21% 75.32% 78.87% 87.50%

22022 70.05% 68.29% 74.49% 87.04% 88.17% 76.12% 86.02% 79.44% 79.46% 90.60%



Unit Call 
Volume

Daily 
Average

Unit Hour 
Utilization

E50 2,037 5.58 28.58%

E51 2,206 6.04 26.74%

E53 2,451 6.72 28.73%

E540 464 2.32 55.27%

E54 1,975 5.41 25.27%

E57 624 1.71 17.43%

E58 2,135 5.85 26.39%

E59 2,019 5.53 26.38%

E61 1,406 3.85 21.48%

E62 1,759 4.82 28.60%

E63 720 1.97 21.63%



0 5,000 10,000 15,000

2015

2016

2017

2018

2019

2020

2021

2022

3,740

3,989

3,781

3,282

3,508

3,669

4,386

4,172

327

479

456

488

523

608

673

671

5,474

5,499

5,802

6,133

6,148

6,751

7,826

7,730

1,095

994

1,394

1,952

2,051

1,988

2,261

2,369

CALL VOLUME

Unincorporated Dewey-Humboldt Prescott Valley Chino Valley



44 Fires involving Residential Structures
27 Fires Confined Inside Structures
16 Fires in Residential Out Structures
5 Fires in Commercial Structures

24 Structure Fire Loss  < $5,000
14 Structure Fire Loss  $5,000 – $100,000
16 Structure Fire Loss  > $100,000

60 Residential Fires Loss of $3,984,803
5 Commercial Fires Loss of $   158,700

15 Vehicle Fires Loss of $   138,200
44 Wildland / Brush / Grass Fires Loss of $       1,550
22 Outside Rubbish / Trash / Other Loss of $       5,512

Firefighter Injuries – 0 Civilian Injuries – 4
Firefighter Fatalities – 0 Civilian Fatalities – 2



Auto Aid:
CAFMA to PFD     1,761 PFD to CAFMA     864 
CAFMA to WVFD        1 WVFD to CAFMA   39

Out of District Calls (114):
7 Wildland Fire, 1 Camper Trailer Fire, 1 Greenhouse Fire, 26 EMS,                           
20 Vehicle Accidents, 1 Unauthorized Burning, 3 Search & Rescue, 
6 Public Service, 45 Cancelled en Route, 3 No Incident Found, 1 Stand-by

Mutual Aid Given (7):
Mayer Fire District: 1 Wildland Fire, 2 Cancelled en Route
Groom Creek Fire District: 1 Medical Assist, 2 Cancelled en Route
Walker FD: 1 Stand-By

Off-District Wildland Incidents Supported (25):
9 Arizona, 7 New Mexico, 6 California, 1 Oregon, 1 Tennessee, 1 Texas
41 Total Personnel Involved











27 March 2023  Page | 1  

DIVISION REPORTS 
REPORTED TO THE 

CENTRAL ARIZONA FIRE AND MEDICAL AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Chief’s Report 
By Fire Chief Freitag 

We’ve completed all five internal strategic input sessions with our personnel. Out of 165 we 
had 143 that participated. While not all responses were at the leadership level, they were 
responses from different perspectives and positions within the organization. In the end, we 
have some useful feedback for our next steps in the process.  

I’ll be meeting with our strategic planning facilitator on Monday, March 20 to review the 
current document as well as plan our next steps. We still need to have each one of you 
participate, and identify our external stakeholder participants e.g., community leaders, elected 
officials, etc. After reading our internal comments, it will be interesting to see what the board 
and our external stakeholders think of our organization.  

I’ve been meeting with some community leaders and elected officials regarding the three-year 
staffing plan that we’ve proposed. Our current budget projections put the tax increase in the 
first year between .08 and .10 cents. That could change based on any additional budget inputs 
that we do not have yet. The second- and third-year increases are estimated at .10 cents as 
well. However, that amount has been estimated without successful SAFER Grant submittals. 
The number could be less if our SAFER Grant requests are successful. Those I’ve talked with so 
far, are not necessarily happy that their property taxes will increase, however they understand 
our situation and have been supportive.  

Chief Tharp, Chief Feddema, Kathy Goodman, and I worked on our grant narratives together. 
Additionally, we sent the drafts through the union to staff at the International Association of 
Firefighters (IAFF) for review and comment. The feedback we received was very helpful as we 
worked to finalize our documents. Chief Tharp submitted our application on March 17. The next 
step will be to reach out to elected officials at the federal level seeking their support. We may 
make contact with them in concert with the City of Prescott as well as Verde Valley FD to stress 
the regional and county need for additional personnel.  

Over the last few months, we’ve had Susanne take minutes during our labor/management 
meetings. Those minutes are published after final approval by the group to add another layer of 
transparency to the meetings. Jointly we hope that the minutes will help keep our membership 
informed regarding our discussions. It’s also a way to help curtail some of the misinformation 
that had been circulating after past L/M meetings.  

I’ve been asked to participate in the Governor’s pre-wildfire briefing on Monday, March 27. I’m 
usually the only Fire Chief present for the briefings. This opportunity will allow me to stress the 
importance of funding our fire districts. The data from last year shows a 50% reduction in local 
resource availability. Our numbers from last year also show that we saw a 50% reduction in our 
ability to send resources.  



27 March 2023  Page | 2  

DIVISION REPORTS 
REPORTED TO THE 

CENTRAL ARIZONA FIRE AND MEDICAL AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

In the State of Arizona, the local fire agencies are the state’s fire service. Unlike California, we 
do not have a state-run fire department. This means that if we cannot respond, resources are 
pulled from other states which leads to delayed effective suppression efforts. If the state does 
not start to recognize the importance of funding our agencies, the number of resources 
available will continue to decrease.  

Being with the Governor does mean that I will miss our board training with Attorney Cornelius 
at 1500 on the 27th. Chief Tharp will be there to participate.  

As of Monday, March 20 we will have a Fire Marshal again, which will decrease some of the 
workload Chief Rose has had to shoulder. We will be short one inspector, however our plan is 
to let the new team evaluate their processes and resources before we seek someone to fill the 
spot.  

Kathy Goodman has started in her new position as CAFMA’s Public Relations Coordinator. You 
may have noticed that our social media presence has already increased with content that 
continues to engage our followers. Additionally, she has been effective at sending press 
releases out to the media which has increased our media presence as well. We still need to 
work on our public education programs, but that will take some time. Overall, in a short period 
of time, she has already accomplished a lot. That said, we still have a ways to go. If we can hire 
a public educator as outlined in the third year of our staffing plan, we will be far more effective 
in providing programs to everyone we serve.   



27 March 2023  Page | 3  

DIVISION REPORTS 
REPORTED TO THE 

CENTRAL ARIZONA FIRE AND MEDICAL AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Administration  
By Assistant Chief Tharp 

We are progressing through the budget and capital asset planning for fiscal year 2024. This is a 
lengthy process involving many moving parts and multiple “needs” and “wants”. Ultimately, we 
will be looking at a significant increase to the tax rate for both entities to accommodate all the 
staffing needs and to cover inflationary costs. Undoubtably, this will result in many taxpayers, 
businesses and organizations being upset, but it will be a process to work through so that 
everyone will not like the outcome but will be willing to support it for the enhanced services 
that are needed. We are faced with a challenge that has been manifest in our ISO rating 
(insurance service office) for commercial and residential property, and as we progress through 
our accreditation process – will also be noted as an area that will need improvement to 
accommodate an effective response force and be more in compliance with the standards 
outlined in NFPA 1710 (National Fire Protection Agency). 

Chief Freitag is already working with local leaders to educate and solicit input for the strategic 
plan and what we can do to diversify our revenue – because just raising property taxes will not 
make people happy. It is a two-edged sword, but we are hopeful that our reputation and 
willingness to work with alternative ideas will afford some latitude in our plan for the agency to 
increase staffing. Additionally, we applied for the SAFER Grant and 8 new firefighters. We will 
see how the process works as there are always challenges with the requirements and funding (a 
lot of organizations apply for staffing).  

Ultimately, we are working hard to address the “needs” of the organization while being 
committed to the internal and external customers. We will need the board members, 
community members, elected officials and our employees to be moving in the same direction 
to make CAFMA successful for the future and meet the standards established by fire and 
insurance best practices for community safety.  

 



27 March 2023  Page | 4  

DIVISION REPORTS 
REPORTED TO THE 

CENTRAL ARIZONA FIRE AND MEDICAL AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

February 2023 
RECORDS REQUESTS 

Record Type Received Pending

EMS 5 1

Environmental 2 0

Fire 4 1

Incident 1 0

Public Record 4 2

Totals 16 4

 



27 March 2023  Page | 5  

DIVISION REPORTS 
REPORTED TO THE 

CENTRAL ARIZONA FIRE AND MEDICAL AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Operations 
By Assistant Chief Feddema 

We are wrapping up the process for our annual Physical Fitness Monitoring with only a few 
members needing to go through the test. Personnel have done very well, and the trainers put in 
a lot of work to get everyone through the process. The test we perform is the VO2 max test 
which provides a comprehensive evaluation of their physical fitness. The test provides data on 
how much oxygen they use as they exercise and determines the maximal oxygen consumed 
during exercise. The last several years has provided multiple challenges related to our annual 
physicals and fitness monitoring. I feel we are finally getting back to a healthy rhythm related 
the activities that support the health and wellness of CAFMA personnel.   

We continue to monitor response times, engine reliability, along with the call volume each 
month. These numbers will be reviewed each quarter to ensure we are properly planning for 
future stations, apparatus requirements, and staffing needs. One area that has caught our 
attention is Station 51. We continue to see the response reliability decrease in that area. This 
means that the engine is either busy on a call or pulled into another area to run a call. When 
this happens, we typically start to see an increase in our average response times. We have been 
in communication with the leadership of Prescott Fire and are working on a dispatch module to 
help identify efficiencies in our “move-ups”. A “move-up” is when an Engine moves from one 
are to cover another. The module that is being looked at will help identify call propensity to 
ensure our move-ups are allocated according to current trends in the call volume. We want to 
meet the needs of a growing community now and into the future. The increase in call volume 
also continues to challenge ambulance response times. We continue to work on our goal to find 
a long-term solution; however, CAFMA crews have done a great job supporting the community 
with the Rescues. This is an added burden but they have done a great job working through the 
challenge.  

There have been many activities in the Training Division this past month. The Engineer’s test 
was hosted this past month, and everyone did well. The results will be posted after the review 
period is complete. They also recently completed the Company Officer Academy which had 
great attendance. It is nice to see training and other activities pick up. The participation in the 
Captains Academy was very good and we are starting to see classes fill up as we move beyond 
the issues created by COVID. The annual Arizona Wildfire Incident Management Academy was 
also held in Prescott. CAFMA sent multiple people to attend the training, and several went to 
help teach portions of the training. The program is an excellent opportunity to network and 
increase knowledge. 

 



27 March 2023  Page | 6  

DIVISION REPORTS 
REPORTED TO THE 

CENTRAL ARIZONA FIRE AND MEDICAL AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

EMS Report 
By EMS Chief Niemynski 

CAFMA transported 10 patients in our Rescues during the month of February 2023.  The total 
number of Rescue transports from 7/1/21 – 3/19/2023 equals 309 times.  CAFMA continues to 
send in our paramedics on BLS AMR ambulances.  As of 2/19/2023 we have sent in a paramedic 
over 3139 times to support a BLS ambulance from AMR and a small number of Priority 
ambulances since 7/1/2021.  This is something we will continue to do as it is what is best for 
our citizens.  



27 March 2023  Page | 7  

DIVISION REPORTS 
REPORTED TO THE 

CENTRAL ARIZONA FIRE AND MEDICAL AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Planning and Logistics 
By Assistant Chief Rose 

COMMUNITY RELATIONS 

Kathy Goodman started as our new Community Relations Coordinator on February 27. She hit 
the ground running, setting up meetings with internal and external customers, sending out 
press releases, and training with Jonah, Tech Services Manager, on the podcast. She, along with 
Chief Freitag, were also guests on the Code 3 Podcast the week of March 6th. Soon she will 
begin reviewing the website and our public education programs as well. 

FACILITIES 

Work continues at Station 50 doing some freshening up of the painting. We are fitting it in as 
we have time.  

We are still moving forward with the plans at Station 63. The turnout room dual-swing door has 
arrived, the riprap repairs have been completed, equipment is ordered for the new bay heaters 
and exhaust, a contractor is putting together a quote on the culvert replacements at the end of 
the driveway, and the original contractor for the remodel is giving us some updated numbers 
on doing the only the quarters area of the station now. We are still in hopes that the new 
turnout room will be underway at the beginning of April as well. 

CARTA back hill repair and detention pond changes are on schedule to start the week of 3/13. 
We’re hoping to get it wrapped up before Engineering testing the first week of May.  

We’re still waiting on the snow to melt up on Spruce so we can get the new generator up there 
and installed. It’s probably still a month before it will be dry enough to get equipment up there.  

We will be working with Comms to install access control on the doors out at Station 61’s old 
Admin in the next week or so. We are still looking into resolving the new flooring issue we are 
having from the station remodel. With the flooring issue being a warranty matter, we are 
looking at alternative options to prevent it from happening again if we used a similar product.  

As always, the routine maintenance is ongoing, but in addition we have had about 215 work 
orders come in since July 1st that have been resolved.  

FLEET 

Projects:   

NEW TYPE 1 ENGINES:  

The new pumpers have been inspected. All went well, with only a few minor changes to the 
truck. After inspection, the items noted are taken care of at the Pierce factory. I recently 
received a spreadsheet showing our noted issues and the repairs performed. The last 
communication with Pierce was the vehicles had left the factory and were on their way to 



27 March 2023  Page | 8  

DIVISION REPORTS 
REPORTED TO THE 

CENTRAL ARIZONA FIRE AND MEDICAL AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Arizona. Once in Arizona, Hughes Fire in Phoenix will go over the trucks once again, detail them 
and then deliver them to us. We hope to have them before the end of the month.  

STAFF VEHICLES:  

We are currently working on our Capital purchase plan for the 2023-2024 budget year. A lot of 
consideration was given to vehicles needing to be replaced. Many of these were moved out in 
the schedule a year or two based on condition and lower than expected mileage. Others have 
stayed in the plan for replacement. Once complete the final decisions will be reflected in the 
budget. UTV: The new UTV has been completed. It is at the warehouse right now being stocked 
with its inventory. This new unit should be delivered and placed in service at station 63 soon.  

OPTICOM:  

This project is still in the works, with installation of the vehicle units each time a vehicle comes 
to fleet for service work. It is a time-consuming project, consisting of removal of the headliner 
to install an antenna for the GPS, as well as installation of a complex wiring system. This unit 
ties into existing vehicle controls such as the turn signals, brake switches and park indicators. 
Multiple engines have been completed along with the battalion chief vehicles. Once frontline 
engines are completed, we will install the system on the Rescues, brush trucks and type III 
apparatus. 

Maintenance and Repair:  

Fleet has been very busy catching up on services. Many of our frontline engines are currently 
due and we are working to get them into the shop. With wildland fire season approaching, fleet 
has been busy preparing our wildland vehicles as well. Once the new engines are delivered, we 
hope to always have two mechanics working on this upfit. Since these are a new design with a 
different layout, this will be a time-consuming project. We hope to meet with the apparatus 
and equipment committees and go over inventory placement on these newly designed vehicles 
before we start. One engine will receive all new equipment and the others will have equipment 
moved over from other apparatus that are going to surplus. 

UPDATES:  

Fleet has hired Mechanic Ben Burchard. Ben comes to us from the City of Prescott fleet 
department where he did most of the work on the fire apparatus. He has great fabrication skills 
as well, and we are excited to add him to our team at fleet. Ben filled the position left with 
Bryten Burch’s exit from fleet. If you see him be sure to say hi and introduce yourselves. 



27 March 2023  Page | 9  

DIVISION REPORTS 
REPORTED TO THE 

CENTRAL ARIZONA FIRE AND MEDICAL AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

TECHNICAL SERVICES 

New UTV - Dave Legge recently completed outfitting one of our new UTV's with a radio and 
Tony Frazier delivered to the Warehouse for final stocking. 

GIS and Statistics - Michael Freeman has been continuing to assist with the CON process, as 
well as providing the data needed to submit the SAFER grant. 

Strategic Planning - Thanks to Titus Overmyer for assisting in getting the strategic planning 
platform fully functional for all users.  

Station 61 Administration Access Control - All parts needed for converting the doors at Station 
61 Administration to access control have arrived. We are scheduled to begin this process the 
week of March 20th. 

Wildland and Engine iPads - Tony Frazier has been working hard setting up new iPads for our 
Wildland program, as well as working with Chief Niemynski on getting all Engine iPads enrolled 
in our management platform. This process will greatly improve our ability to deploy software 
and manage these devices in the field. 



27 March 2023  Page | 10  

DIVISION REPORTS 
REPORTED TO THE 

CENTRAL ARIZONA FIRE AND MEDICAL AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

WAREHOUSE 

The Warehouse Division has continued to work on our SCBA packs with flow testing and 
repairs. We have begun seeing parts that have been on order for several months come in. This 
has helped us get these packs back in service.  

With the start of so many new hires, we have been busy getting uniforms ordered as fast as we 
can to outfit each of them. So far, we’ve not run into too many snags. We should have them all 
taken care of within a few weeks, pending any supply issues.  

The Warehouse Division has confirmed our ladder testing dates for the end of the month. We 
will rotate all apparatus in to have ladders either tested at that time or we will outfit with a 
new, freshly tested set to ensure that they are out of service for the least amount of time 
possible. 

We are still waiting for our stock hose to come in. Due to this back order, we will have no 
choice but to push back our start time of April for hose testing. We will do everything we can to 
make sure we keep up with our annual hose testing procedures. 

All other daily operations continue as usual. 

As always, feel free to contact me if you have any questions. 

 



27 March 2023  Page | 11  

DIVISION REPORTS 
REPORTED TO THE 

CENTRAL ARIZONA FIRE AND MEDICAL AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Training 
By Training Chief Parra 

As the weather becomes warmer the focus of training also shifts toward wildland firefighting 
operations. We concluded the January/February quarterly training which focused on Live Fire 
Operations and transitioned into the wildland training for March/April. The training reviews firefighter 
safety, fire shelter deployment, and focuses on pump and roll operations. This training is being held at 
CARTA and will be taught by Prescott and CAFMA Training Officers.  

The Wildfire Academy which is hosted at the Emery Riddle Aeronautical University took place March 13-
17. This is an excellent opportunity for our personnel to attend training that is at times difficult to 
locate. In one location there are firefighters from around the country taking courses together. This 
offers an excellent educational experience as well as networking opportunity. We have numerous 
personnel from CAFMA that are taking courses, instructing courses, as well participating in the 
management of the Wildfire Academy.  



27 March 2023  Page | 13  

DIVISION REPORTS 
REPORTED TO THE 

CENTRAL ARIZONA FIRE AND MEDICAL AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Response Report 
By GIS | Records Management Specialist Freeman 



27 March 2023  Page | 14  

DIVISION REPORTS 
REPORTED TO THE 

CENTRAL ARIZONA FIRE AND MEDICAL AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 



MINUTES 
  

Central Arizona Fire and Medical Authority Board of Directors
Regular Meeting

Monday, February 27, 2023, 5:00 pm
Central Arizona Fire and Medical Authority, Administration

8603 E. Eastridge Drive, Prescott Valley

In-Person Attendance
Dave Dobbs; Dave Tharp; Gayle Pickett; Lorette Stewart; Matt Zurcher; Rick 

Anderson; Scott A Freitag; Susanne Dixson
Remote Attendance
Nicolas Cornelius

1. CALL TO ORDER / ROLL CALL OF BOARD MEMBERS

Chair Zurcher called the meeting to order at 5:00 p.m.

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

Chair Zurcher led the Pledge of Allegiance.

3. CORRESPONDENCE AND PRESENTATIONS

A. Letters from the Public and Board Recognition

Chief Freitag repeated a note to one of our Fire Pals that said our 
firefighters are cooler than ghostbusters and police.

4. REPORTS

A. Board Member Reports

Chair Zurcher stated that he and directors Pickett and Reinhardt 
attended the Recruit Academy graduation. He thanked all those who 
worked to put on the academy. Director Pickett said she feels the 
same.

B. Division Reports

Chief Freitag reported that he and the rest of Senior Staff attended the 
Chief Executive Officer Program last week. Chief Tharp added that it 
was a good training opportunity and he's looking forward to the next 
session in October.

DRAFTMEMBERSMEMBERS

er at 5:00 p.m.er at 

e of Allegiance.e of Allegiance.

AND PRESENTATIONSPRESENTATIONS

the Public and Board Recothe Public and Boar

Freitag repeated a note to oFreitag repeated a note to 
ighters are ters ar coolercooler than ghosthan ghos

PORTSPORTS

A.A. Board Member Repomber Repo

Chair Zurcher Chair Zurche
ttended thttended th

ked toked to

Page 1 of 8



5. CALL TO THE PUBLIC

There were no public comments.

6. CONSENT AGENDA

A. Approve Regular Session Minutes - January 23, 2023

B. Approve General Fund Financial Statements

C. Approve Fire Protection Agreements: Kelly and Rodriquez

D. Approve Policy Amendments: 203.1 DUI Second Chance 
Policy, 190 Public Records Access, 208 Support Volunteer 
Program, 243 Demotions, 407 Retirement and Deferred 
Compensation Benefits, 608 Tobacco Policy, 610 Performance 
Evaluations, 970 Safety - Health Maintenance

E. Approve Affiliation Agreement for Field Internship Training 
Experience with Granite Mountain Training

Motion to approve the Consent Agenda.

Move: Rick Anderson Second: Dave Dobbs Status: Passed

Yes: Dave Dobbs, Matt Zurcher, Lorette Stewart, Rick Anderson, 
Gayle Pickett

7. VOTE TO GO INTO EXECUTIVE SESSION

Executive Session was waived.

A. Legal Advice Pursuant to A.R.S. §38-431.03(A)(3) Regarding 
Selection of Third Party Legal Counsel

B. Legal Advice Pursuant to A.R.S. §38-431.03(A)(4) Regarding 
Staffing Agreement with Priority Ambulance

DRAFTand Rodriquezand Ro

DUI Second Chance DUI Second Chance
s, 208 Support Volunteer s, 208 Support Volunteer 

Retirement and Deferred Retirement and
Tobacco Policy, 610 Performobacco Policy, 

ealth MainMaintenancetenan

greement for Field Internshieement for Field Interns
ranite Mountain TrainingMountain Training

pprove the Consent Agendapprove the Consent A

Rick AndersonRick Anderson Second: Dand: D

es: Dave Dobbs, Matt Zurche Dobbs, Matt Zurch
Gayle PickettGayle Pickett

VOTE TO GO INTO EXECVOTE TO GO INTO EXEC

xecutive Session wxecutive Session

al Advial Advi
ioio

Page 2 of 8



8. NEW BUSINESS

A. Discussion and Possible Approval of CAFMA Staffing Plan

Chief Freitag advised the Board that Union VP Shaun Jones and Chief 
Feddema are in attendance and available to answer questions.

He reported that staff has put together a 3-year plan for staffing, and 
reminded the Board that our ISO rating has taken a hit, in part due to 
not enough equipment and staffing. He added that when you increase 
the Operations side, it has an effect on non-Ops as well. He stated that 
we are looking at hiring 9 people in the first year (7-Ops, 2-Tech 
Services), 11 new personnel in the second year (8-Ops, 1-Facilities, 1-
Warehouse, 1-Finance), and 11 in the third year (7-Ops, 1-Training, 1-
HR, 1-Community Relations, 1-Admin). He commented that the 
difficulty is that adding staff equals adding cost; looking at a plan like 
this, we're looking at increased rates, more than likely, to meet the 
needs.

He pointed out that there are several things they've looked at on the 
Operations side, including targeting select stations to run 4-person 
minimum staffing, and using alternative response units. We are 
working with Prescott Fire on creating a true emergency medical 
dispatch system which would send only the resources needed; our 
current dispatch system is considerably behind. We're also working 
with Prescott Fire on a move-up module, which would use historical 
data to determine move-ups. Even with these things, considering the 
significant growth in the area, we will have to look at putting another 
engine in place in the next three years, and in fact, we really need one 
now. 

The staffing plan is a structured approach to getting the resources we 
need. It will take 3-years to resolve today's issues, but there is a plan 
to get there without putting too many new employees on the tax rate at 
one time. 

For this fiscal year, we're asking for 7 new firefighters and 2 tech 
services positions; that will cost approximately 1.5 million. Staff is 
asking the Board if they're comfortable with us putting them in the 
budget this year for their consideration. He also asked if the Board 
would support submitting a SAFER grant this year, which would allow 
for incremental tax increases. He reminded the Board that they don't 
have to accept the grant, if awarded, and asked for direction from the 
Board to submit the SAFER grant. 

DRAFT
hat whhat w

Ops as well.Ops a
st year (7st year (7-Ops, 2

ond year (8nd year (8--Ops, 1Op -Fa
e third year (7e third year (7--Ops, 1Ops -Train

min). He commented that thmin). He commented tha
als adding cost; looking at aals adding cost; looking at a

ed rates, more than likely, torates, more th

here are several things they'ere are several things 
cluding targeting select statng targeting select sta

g, and using alternative respsing alternative res
Prescott Fire on creating a tPrescott Fire on creating a t

ystem which would send onlystem which would s
dispatch system is consideradispatch system is cons

rescott Fire on a moverescott Fire on a mo -up mup 
a to determine movedetermine move--ups. Eups. E

significant growth in the areaignificant growth
engine in place in the nexengine in place in t
now. 

The staffing plan The staffing p
need. It will takneed. It will ta
o get there o get there 

e time. e time. 

Page 3 of 8



Chair Zurcher inquired as to how many operations personnel the 
SAFER grant would provide; Chief Freitag indicated 7 or 8 personnel; it 
would essentially take care of the ask for next year. We hope that over 
the next 3-years we can better handle the increase in call demand and 
growth, while reducing the stress on our personnel; he suggested that 
we need to do something to alleviate burn-out and injuries caused by 
mandatory overtime. 

Chief Freitag added that fixing our paramedic pay also needs to be in 
our plan, and compared our starting wages with those of another first 
responder agency in the area, showing our paramedic pay is far 
behind. He stated that the Union has been working on a plan to 
change the scale, but we do not have those numbers yet.

Chair Zurcher inquired about the timing of the SAFER grant 
notifications. Chief Freitag answered that we typically hear those 
results in the Fall.

Director Dobbs asked how long the SAFER grant was; Chief Tharp 
answered that it is now a 3-year window, and it is a percentage for 
those 3-years. Chief Freitag added that we hope for a late-fall 
notification in order to not overlap this fiscal year by more than 3-
months.

Chief Freitag further advised that we would also like to increase the 
number of students we can support for paramedic school; we typically 
fund two per year, and he's asked Chief Niemynski to request an 
increase to support up to six students.

Chair Zurcher asked Chief Niemynski to comment; Chief Niemynski 
stated that we've had a hard time getting people interested in 
becoming a paramedic, and he doesn't know that we'll get the interest 
we're looking for without changes.

Chief Feddema stated that we are trying to add units and value to the 
response system, as adding personnel alone won't change the ISO 
rating.

Chief Freitag commented that we will need to have discussions with 
the Board and go out to the community in the near future because we'll 
have to go out to bond to build needed infrastructure.

Chair Zurcher asked Union VP Jones to comment. VP Jones stated 
that from the Labor standpoint, they are not going to vote down adding 
more staff, as any additions will get us closer to a 4-person minimum 

DRAFT
hoshos

ramedic ramed
working on a pworkin

se numbers yet.se number

ming of the SAFER grant ming of the SAFER gra
red that we typically hear thred that we typically hear 

w long the SAFER grant wae SAFE
a 3a 3-year window, and it is ayear window, a

Freitag added that we hopereitag added that we ho
er to not overlap this fiscal yot overlap this fiscal y

tag further advised that we tag further advised th
r of students we can supporr of students we can supp

two per year, and he's askewo per year, and he's aske
crease to support up to six sto support up to six s

Chair Zurcher asked ChChair Zurcher asked
stated that we've had at we've had
becoming a paramea pa
we're looking forwe're looking f

hief Feddhief Fedd
onseonse

Page 4 of 8



staffing and improve our effective fire-fighting force. Regarding 
paramedics, he hopes we'll have a significant increase and complete 
change to the pay scale, and believes those changes would help 
address the threat we face regarding recruiting and retention for 
paramedics. He added that we received one paramedic application 
during our last hiring, and they took a job elsewhere before getting to 
the oral boards. He believes that our current paramedic stipend has 
affected our ability to hire new paramedics. He concluded his 
comments by advising the Board of future items that may be brought 
forward in the next few fiscal years, including PEHP increases.

Chair Zurcher opened the floor for questions or comments from sitting 
CYFD Board members Gordon and Reinhardt, who were in the 
audience. Director Gordon asked if the staffing plan is available for 
review, specifically, some of the operational ideas. Chief Freitag 
answered that they will send the 3-year staffing plan, and they are 
working on having a bullet-pointed approach to the rest of the plan. He 
is setting up meetings with community stake-holders to let them know 
the challenges we're facing today, what we think works as a solution, 
and how that gets funded. Director Reinhardt asked if the numbers 
presented related to the SAFER grant included PSPRS; Chief Freitag 
answered in the affirmative. He asked if it was a better idea to ask for 
more than we needed through the SAFER grant; Chief Freitag 
answered that the SAFER grant either gives you what you ask for or 
they give you nothing. He requested final numbers related to the 7 
Operations personnel; Chair Zurcher stated that we would be going 
over those numbers during the budget workshop. 

Chair Zurcher stated he would like to see these things in the draft 
budget, and encouraged Staff to move forward with the SAFER grant 
submission. 

Director Anderson confirmed the paramedic stipend would be included 
in the budget, and asked if we had an idea of what Paramedic pay 
would increase to; Chief Freitag indicated we don't have numbers yet, 
but suggested that $11,500 would be a good base. VP Jones stated 
that the Union voted on a pay plan that is subject to COLAs and merit 
increases. He added that one issue we're facing is that members 
further in their career are dropping their paramedic certification, so 
we're hoping to create a pay plan that starts high and can continue to 
grow will be an incentive to maintain that certification. Chief Freitag 
stated that we would have two wage scales for each position, i.e. 
Firefighter EMT and Firefighter CEP.

Chair Zurcher reminded the board of additional items that will need to 

DRAFT
HP HP 

s or commentss or co
hardt, who were in hardt, who 

e staffing plan is availablee staffing plan is 
erational ideas. Chief Freitagerational ideas. Chief 

33--year staffing plan, and theyear staffing plan, and th
nted approach to the rest of nted approach to the rest of 

community smunity staketake-holders to 
ng today, what we think worwhat w

ed. Director Reinhardt askeed. Director Reinha
the SAFER grant included e SAFER grant include

ffirmative. He asked if it wative. He asked if it wa
needed through the SAFER rough the SAFER

at the SAFER grant either gat the SAFER grant 
you nothing. He requested fyou nothing. He reque

ons personnel; Chair Zurchons personnel; Chair Zur
those numbers during the bhose numbers during the b

Chair Zurcher stated he woChair Zurcher sta
budget, and encouragedbudget, and encoura
submission. on. 

DirectoDi r Andersonde
in the budget,in the budget

ould increould incre
suggsugg

Page 5 of 8



be addressed in the budget, specifically PSPRS unfunded liability and 
Capital Reserve; these are other issues on top of staffing and 
paramedic pay. Chief Freitag commented that it is better for us to have 
a Capital Reserve and budget funds for it than to have to budget to pay 
interest on warrants because we have to borrow from the County to 
make payroll.

B. Discussion and Possible Selection of Third Party Legal 
Counsel

Attorney Cornelius stated that he has received information from Burch 
& Cracchiolo, but has not received firm information from the two other 
attorneys. He would like to hear from them before a selection decision 
has been made. 

He suggested the item be tabled.

C. Discussion and Possible Approval of Staffing Agreement with 
Priority Ambulance

Chief Niemynski stated this is a 1-year agreement that we can change 
at any time or cancel if needed. At this point, it would get those rigs 
staffed with a minimum of an EMT, and they would be able to respond 
to the calls where we're waiting long periods for an ambulance. He 
added that they guys on the floor want this as well, as it would reduce 
the number of times they have to ride in.

Chair Zurcher asked if this would help our CON process; Chief Freitag 
answered no, in fact they might try to use it against us; however, this 
solution is only bridging a gap between Priority getting all of their 
equipment and stations in place and the 911 needs today. He 
referenced a motor vehicle crash this morning that called for 4 
ambulances; we ended up using 2, and used our rescue to transport 
the other 2 patients because calls were kicking out in Prescott and our 
one car crash was going to use all of the units available.

Attorney Cornelius stated this agreement is ready to go, and stated 
that he believes we need something like this in place. 

Motion to approve the Staffing Agreement with Priority Ambulance.

Move: Gayle Pickett Second: Dave Dobbs Status: Passed

Yes: Dave Dobbs, Matt Zurcher, Lorette Stewart, Rick Anderson, 
Gayle Pickett

DRAFT
d informatd info

rmation from thrmatio
em before a selectionm before a s

pproval of Staffing Agreemeal of Staffin

ated this is a 1this is a 1--year agreemyear agreem
ancel if needed. At this pointeeded. At this poi

minimum of an EMT, and thminimum of an EMT, and th
where we're waiting long pewhere we're waiting

hat they guys on the floor wahat they guys on the floo
umber of times they have to mber of times they have to

Chair Zurcher asked if this wChair Zurcher as
answered no, in fact they answered no, in fa
solution is only bridgingsolution is only bridgi
equipment and statiot and statio
referenced a motoreferenced a m
ambulances; wambulances; w
he other 2 phe other 2 p

e car cre car cr

Page 6 of 8



D. Discussion Regarding Ambulance Certificate of Necessity 
(CON)

Chief Freitag reported that we had to resubmit all of our response 
times, as our application used urbanicity standards, which is statutory, 
but historically has not been used by DHS. Chief Freitag added that 
Kathy Steadman will be here for a meeting on Wednesday, and we will 
meet the new litigator at that time. She expects we'll be in litigation in 
the next few months.

Chief Freitag commented that he has been questioned in the 
community regarding the CON application. The bottom line is, we have 
two private companies here who are owned by venture capital firms. 
We see what happens when these companies are not making money, 
and noted that we are very rarely getting getting ALS paramedic rigs. 
We've billed a significant amount, almost $500,000 in 4-months, for
ride-ins. That's a lot of ride-ins, taking our equipment out of the system. 
Having a second company up here doesn't solve the short-term 
problem, nor does it solve the long-term challenges or concerns that 
we're going to face with all the growth. We're not looking to inundate or 
take over from the private company, but we do think we need a 
backstop so we do not have to face what we've been dealing with over 
the last eight years. Having an overlapping CON will only benefit the 
system. He stated that as part of the system, we need to have a CON; 
right now, we're doing all these transports and providing the paramedic 
for these calls, and the taxpayers are not getting a dime of that in 
return. 

Attorney Cornelius stated that this item ties in with item B regarding the 
number of transports and what we've billed, and reiterated the number 
of transports is over 3,000.

Chief Freitag added that other areas are facing the same issues, and 
mentioned that Kingman and Mohave Valley are also not getting any 
ALS ambulances. He concluded by stating it would not be responsible 
as the Fire Chief to recommend we stop pursuing the CON knowing 
the challenges we've had, the challenges we're still facing, and seeing 
the how the EMS systems around the state continue to collapse in the 
areas where they don't have some sort of public and private 
ambulance transport.

DRAFT
uestioned uestio

The bottom lineThe bo
ned by venture capitaned by ventu

mpanies are not making mmpanies are not m
etting getting ALS paramedetting getting ALS para

t, almost $500,000 in 4t, almost $500,000 in 4--monmo
s, taking our equipment out otaking our equ

up here doesn't solve the shere doesn't 
e the long-term challenges term 

th all the growth. We're not h all the growth. We'r
private company, but we do ate company, but we d

do not have to face what wehave to face what we
years. Having an overlappinears. Having an overlappin

stated that as partstated that as part of the syo
, we're doing all these trans, we're doing all these 

se calls, and the taxpayers se calls, and the taxpayer
rn. 

Attorney Cornelius stated Attorney Cornelius
number of transports annumber of transports
of transports is over 3orts is over 3

Chief Freitag adChief Freitag a
mentioned thmentioned th

S ambuS ambu
e Fe F

Page 7 of 8



9. ADJOURNMENT

Motion to adjourn at 5:44 p.m.

Move: Rick Anderson Second: Gayle Pickett Status: Passed

Yes: Dave Dobbs, Matt Zurcher, Lorette Stewart, Rick Anderson, Gayle 
Pickett

DRAFT

Page 8 of 8



CENTRAL ARIZONA FIRE AND MEDICAL AUTHORITY
GENERAL FUND BANK RECONCILIATION FEBRUARY, 2023

Reconciliation: Bank Statement Balance:
Beginning Balance: 12,360,026.68$ Balance Per Bank: 10,222,776.65$
Fire District Deposits: 61,366.14$ Outstanding Checks: (54,166.55)$

-$ Outstanding Deposits: -$
1,023,903.25$ Outstanding Payroll Direct Deposit: -$

Disbursements: (3,477,574.43)$
Other: Treasurer Deposit In Error 200,888.46$
Other:  N/A -$

Ending Balance: 10,168,610.10$ Ending Balance: 10,168,610.10$

Difference Between Balances: -$ G/L Ending Balance: 10,168,610.10$

10,168,610.10$

Checks From Accounts Payable: 2,052,473.43$
Fire District Deposits: 61,366.14$ 1,425,101.00$
Interest Revenue: -$
Transfer In:  CHINO Fire Authority Funding 181,964.85$ Total Checks and Charges: 3,477,574.43$
Transfer In:  CYFD Fire Authority Funding 841,938.40$

200,888.46$
Deposits From Accounts Receivable: 61,366.14$
Other:  GL JE for Fire Authority Funding 1,023,903.25$
Other:  Treasurer Deposit In Error 200,888.46$

Ending Balance: 1,286,157.85$ Ending Balance: 1,286,157.85$

Reconciliation Approved By:

Reconciliation Reviewed By:

Deposits Per Bank Statement: Bank Reconciliation Register:

Interest Revenue

Transfer In:  Fire Authority Funding

Reconciliation Prepared By:

Other:  Trf FY 21-22 Excess Funds To CapRes

Other: Treasurer Deposit In Error

Karen Mauldin, Finance Manager

Scott Freitag, Fire Chief

David Tharp, Assistant Chief of Administration



CENTRAL ARIZONA FIRE AND MEDICAL AUTHORITY  
Capital Projects Fund FY 22-23  
GL #1200

Date Transaction Debit Credit Balance

07/01/22 Fiscal Year 22-23 Beginning Balance 6,026,141.00$          

08/31/22 Interest Revenue $3,905.59 6,030,046.59$          

09/30/22 Interest Revenue $12,351.29 6,042,397.88$          

12/31/22 Interest Revenue $32,272.69 6,074,670.57$          

02/28/23 FY22 Transfer of Excess Funds From Gen Fund $1,425,101.00 7,499,771.57$          

Z:\Administration\Finance\BANK RECONCILIATIONS\FY 22-23\Financials FY 22-23\FY 22-23\Capital Reserve Fund\Capital 
Reserve Fund FY 22-23



July Aug. Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec. Jan. Feb. March April May June

474,223                       118,921          43,946            316,713           11,948,764       3,333,798      2,365,830     1,023,903        2,406,348        2,406,348       2,406,348      2,406,348      

34,245                         4,323              5,672               5,553               2,655                 1,614              2,587             88                     15,000             15,000            15,000            15,000            
76,396                         54,961            58,603            41,896             38,341               21,856           57,686           36,705             44,519             44,519            44,519            44,519            

-                                9,626              26,718            -                    -                      19,427           -                 -                    4,167                4,167               4,167              4,167              
3,814                           -                  11,900            -                    -                      14,392           -                 3,051                73,270             73,270            73,270            73,270            

-                                -                  -                   -                    -                      -                  -                 -                    166,667           166,667          166,667          166,667          
288,794                       447,471          47,380            35,791             839,800             198,506         3,756             222,435           50,117             50,117            50,117            50,117            
877,471                       635,302          194,219          399,953           12,829,560       3,589,593      2,429,859     1,286,182        2,760,086        2,760,086       2,760,086      2,760,086      

1,764,463                    1,537,497      1,502,510       1,855,000       2,855,729         1,923,413      1,725,401     1,501,136        2,182,767        2,182,767       2,182,767      2,182,767      
101,770                       223,114          151,482          262,491           125,172             191,149         222,802        231,393           237,810           237,810          237,810          237,810          

18,611                         16,130            17,164            23,421             14,315               17,878           21,656           52,900             22,467             22,467            22,467            22,467            
221,587                       175,929          188,333          261,386           88,059               198,742         134,437        138,985           252,560           252,560          252,560          252,560          

2,637                           300,068          60,358            182,388           263,032             19,243           25,027           117,894           111,324           111,324          111,324          111,324          
2,109,068                    2,252,738      1,919,846       2,584,685       3,346,306         2,350,424      2,129,323     2,042,309        2,806,928        2,806,928       2,806,928      2,806,928      

(1,231,597)                  (1,617,436)     (1,725,627)     (2,184,732)      9,483,254         1,239,169      300,536        (756,127)          (46,842)            (46,842)           (46,842)          (46,842)          

381,699                       (1,235,737)     (2,961,364)     (5,146,096)      4,337,158         5,576,327      5,876,863     5,120,736        

1,613,296                    (4,140)             (1,729,767)     (3,914,499)      5,568,755         6,807,924      7,108,460     6,352,333        

6,026,141                    6,030,047      6,042,398       6,042,398       6,042,398         6,074,671      6,074,671     7,499,772        

Grants

RevenueTotals:

Expenditures:

Property Taxes from 
CYFD/CVFD

Interest Income

Misc. Non Levy
Ambulance

2022 - 2023 Cash Flow by Month:  FEBRUARY

Revenues:

Fire Protection
Fee for Services

Actual PROJECTED

Personnel Costs
Supplies
Utilites

Capital Reserve

(Carryover)
Cash Balance

 

Misc. Service Expenses
Capital Expenses

ExpenditureTotals:

Monthly Net Cash

Cumulative Net Cash



CENTRAL ARIZONA FIRE AND MEDICAL AUTHORITY 
REVENUE GRAPH DATA

YTD
Revenue Budget %

Funding CHINO 181,965$           5,575,524$      14.15
Funding CYFD 841,938$           23,300,649$    65.45
Fire Protection 88$                    180,000$ 0.01
Fleet -$ 40,000$ 0.00
CARTA 8,800$               41,000$           0.68
Prevention 11,646$ 81,730$           0.91
Tech Services 9,336$               185,497$ 0.73
Interest -$                   50,000$           0.00
Off-District -$                   50,000$ 0.00
Purchasing Group 6,923$               210,000$ 0.54
Ambulance Revenue -$                   2,000,000$      0.00
Other Income 225,486$           1,406,635$      17.53
TOTALS: 1,286,182$        33,121,035$ 100.00

Z:\Administration\Finance\BANK RECONCILIATIONS\FY 22-23\Financials FY 22-23\FY 22-23\Revenue and Expense Graphs\02.2023 
CAFMA GF Revenue and Expense Graphs\ Revenue Data



Funding CHINO
14.15%

Funding CYFD
65.45%

Fire
Protection

.01%

CARTA
0.68%

Prevention
0.91%

Tech Services
0.73%

Purchasing Group
0.54%

Other Income
17.53%

Funding CHINO Funding CYFD Fire Protection CARTA Prevention Tech Services Purchasing Group Other Income

CAFMA 
FY 2022 - 2023
General Fund Revenue
Period Ending 02/28/2023



CENTRAL ARIZONA FIRE AND MEDICAL AUTHORITY 
EXPENSE GRAPH DATA

YTD
Expense Budget %

Personnel 1,501,136$ 26,193,200$ 73.50
Supplies 231,393$              2,853,724$           11.33
Services 191,885$              3,300,318$           9.40
Capital Outlay 117,894$              1,335,893$ 5.77
TOTAL: 2,042,309$           33,683,135$          100.00

Z:\Administration\Finance\BANK RECONCILIATIONS\FY 22-23\Financials FY 22-23\FY 22-23\Revenue and Expense 
Graphs\02.2023 CAFMA GF Revenue and Expense Graphs\Expense Data



Personnel 
73.50%

Supplies
11.33%

Services
9.40%

Capital Outlay
5.77%

Personnel Supplies Services Capital Outlay

CAFMA
FY 2022 - 2023
General Fund Expenditures
Period Ending 02/28/2023





















































































































CENTRAL ARIZONA FIRE AND MEDICAL AUTHORITY  
PSPRS Contingency Reserve Fund FY 22-23  
 

Date Transaction Debit Credit Balance

07/01/22 Beginning Balance 2,000,000.00$          

09/30/22 Interest Revenue - September, 2022 $4,099.15 2,004,099.15$          

12/31/22 Interest Revenue - December, 2022 $10,703.97 2,014,803.12$          

Z:\Administration\Finance\BANK RECONCILIATIONS\FY 22-23\Financials FY 22-23\FY 22-23\PSPRS Contingency Reserve 
Fund\PSPRS Contingency Reserve  Fund FY 21-22



SAMPLE 

Central Arizona Fire and Medical Authority 

FIRE PROTECTION SERVICES AGREEMENT 

This Fire Protection Agreement is made effective _________, between the 
Central Arizona Fire and Medical Authority, a political subdivision of the State of 
Arizona, hereinafter referred to as “AGENCY” and ______________________, 
hereinafter referred to as the “Applicant.”  The property under consideration is described 
as: 

Street Address:   
Mailing Address:  
Contact Phone Number:  
Yavapai County Assessor’s Parcel Number: 

IT IS THEREFORE MUTUALLY UNDERSTOOD AND AGREED AS 
FOLLOWS: 

1) Purpose.  AGENCY shall provide fire protection and limited emergency
medical services under the terms of this Agreement. 

2) Duration and Renewal.  The effective term of this Agreement shall be from
__________ through June 30, 2019. The provisions of this Agreement shall renew 
automatically on July 1 of each year for consecutive one-year terms, unless either party 
pursues termination of the Agreement pursuant to Paragraph 11.  

3) Services Provided.  Fire Suppression, Emergency Rescue, and limited
Emergency Medical Services (collectively “Emergency Services”) will be provided under 
this Agreement. Unless the Incident Commander (senior AGENCY Officer present) 
requests additional help, AGENCY shall provide a standard response as determined by 
AGENCY dispatch protocols on each emergency call from the Applicant, subject to 
conditions below.  

It is intended that the Emergency Services provided under this Agreement shall 
be made available to the individuals residing at the property described in the Preamble 
above (the “Property”) or invitees of said residents (collectively, “Service Recipients”) in 
conjunction with the above-referenced Property irrespective of whether the Property is 
owner-occupied or leased. While the Applicant shall be responsible for all fees 
assessed under this Agreement, AGENCY also reserves the right to invoice any actual 
Service Recipient for the services provided under this Agreement, according to the fee 
schedule adopted by AGENCY, as amended from time to time. Said billing shall be in 
addition to the service fee charged under this Agreement. 

In providing services under this Agreement, AGENCY reserves the right to 
involve such other jurisdictions and EMS or suppression service providers as it deems 
necessary, consistent with its then current protocol. No assurances are made as to 

SAMPLE
______, , between the between the

sion of the State of ion of the State o
___________________, ___________

consideration is described ation is des

mberber: : 

UALLY UNDERSTOOD AND AGUALLY UNDERSTOOD AND AG

Y shall provide fire protection and Y shall provide fire p
ms of this Agreementof this Agreement. . 

d Renewal.  The effective term of th The effective term of

MJune 30, 2019.June 30, 2019. The provisions of The provisions o
y 1 of each year for consecutive on1 of each year for consecutive o

on of the Agreement pursuant to Pathe Agreement pursuant to Pa

Services Provided.  Fire SuppreServices Provided.  Fire Suppr

AMcy Medical Services (collectively “Emy Medical Services (collecti
greementment. Unless the Incident CoUnless the Incident C

ests additional help, AGENCY shalitional help, AGENCY sha
GENCY dispatch protocols on eacpatch protocols on ea

conditions belowconditions below. . 

It is intended that the ed th
be made available to the inade available to th
above (the “Property”) obove (the “Property”) o
conjunction with the aconjunction with t
owner-occupied orowner-occupied 
assessed under sessed under

ervice Recipervice Recip
edule ad l

n t



 

 2 

whether, or to what extent, any such third party providers will respond. Applicant and 
Service Recipients may be responsible for any additional charges assessed by such 
other service providers. 
 
 Applicant herein acknowledges that AGENCY alone will determine its response 
to any given incident and that AGENCY alone will determine the number of units and 
personnel responding to such incident. Applicant further acknowledges that such 
response is subject to, among others and without limitation, any unforeseen 
circumstance, a major fire, other accidents, conflicting concurrent calls, reduction in 
force, road closure, poor road conditions, acts of God, or other situations in which there 
is a shortage of manpower or equipment. Applicant understands that the response time 
will likely be extended beyond that which might be regularly expected elsewhere within 
the jurisdictional boundaries of AGENCY by reason of the distance to and isolation of 
the Applicant’s Property, the limited manpower available, access limitations, road 
conditions, and the other calls within AGENCY that may take priority, and Applicant 
hereby consents to the same. In addition, Applicant acknowledges and agrees that 
AGENCY’s response and effectiveness may be limited by a lack of adequate water 
supply.  
 
 Applicant acknowledges and agrees that AGENCY may, in its sole discretion, 
give priority to other emergency calls either within AGENCY’s jurisdictional boundaries 
or outside AGENCY boundaries, potentially causing a delay in response time. Further, 
Applicant acknowledges and agrees that AGENCY may, in conjunction with any call to 
the Property, respond with insufficient equipment or manpower on occasion, either by 
reason of limited manpower, equipment availability, resource allocation, or by reason of 
the limited information having been made available to AGENCY in conjunction with the 
determination of the appropriate response.  
 

Applicant hereby acknowledges that no assurances are given or warranties 
made as to the response time or service level that will be offered, and agrees to hold 
the AGENCY harmless from and indemnify AGENCY for any and all damages which 
might be incurred by Applicant, Service Recipient, to Applicant’s Property or to any third 
party’s property or person, including that of any Service Recipient, by reason of 
extended response times, reduced equipment or manpower response, the decision to 
involve other service providers, failure to involve other jurisdictions or service providers, 
AGENCY’s decision to allocate resources elsewhere either inside or outside of 
AGENCY’s jurisdictional boundaries, the allocation of manpower or equipment, or other 
operational decisions which might result in delay or additional loss of life or property.  

 
Further, Applicant acknowledges and agrees that AGENCY shall not be liable for 

the negligent act or omission of any third party service provider. Applicant also agrees 
that AGENCY is under no obligation to transport any Service Recipient. Applicant 
acknowledges that AGENCY does not hold a Certificate of Necessity and does NOT 
provide ambulance or non-emergency transport services, and that transport services 
are typically provided through a third party. Applicant, Service Recipient, or both, shall 
be solely responsible for any and all expenses associated with any transport services 
utilized by either. 

SAMPLE
 its respoits res

ber of units anber of 
wledges that such ledges that such

on, any unforeseen n, any unforesee
rrent calls, reduction incalls, reduction

er situations in which there ns in which
tands that the response time response time 

larly expected elsewhere within arly expected elsewhere within 
of the distance to and isolation of f the distance to and isolation of 

available, access limitations, roaable, access limitations, roa
Y that may take priority, and Applicthat may take priority, and Ap

Applicant acknowledges and agreeApplicant acknowledges and agre
ay be limited by a lack of adequaay be limited by a lack of adequ

d agrees that AGENCY may, in itsagrees that AGENC
calls either within AGENCYcalls either within AG ’s jurisd

es, potentially causing a delay in repotentially causing a
d agrees that AGENCY may, in cons that AGENCY may

th insufficient equipment or manpont equipment or manp
power, equipment availability, resouower, equipment availability, resou

on having been made available to An having been made available t
he appropriate responsepropriate response. . 

cant hereby acknowledges that ncant hereby acknowledges that 
to the response time or service levo the response time or ser

GENCY harmless from and indemnCY harmless from and indem
ht be incurred urred by Applicant, Service Applicant, Servicey

arty’s property or person, includinrty or person, includi
extended response times, reducedextended response times, reduce
involve other service providers, involve other service p
AGENCYA ’s decision to allosion 
AGENCYCY’s jurisdictional bo’s jurisdictiona
operational decisions whperational decisions w

Further, Apper, Ap
the negligent actnegligent ac
hat AGENCYat AGENCY

nowledgl d
e a



 

 3 

 
 4) Response Time.  AGENCY shall make reasonable efforts to respond to 
Applicant’s emergency calls in a manner consistent with then-current agency protocol, 
subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement. Applicant hereby 
acknowledges that response times are subject to variations due to existing weather 
conditions, road conditions, travel distance, traffic conditions, property identification, 
conflicting responses, equipment and manpower availability or allocation, and access to 
Applicant’s Property. Applicant acknowledges that because of the substantial distance 
involved, the minimum response time likely to be experienced by Applicant may exceed 
that of other recipients within the jurisdictional boundaries of AGENCY, and that no 
assurances are given by the AGENCY as to what ISO rating might apply to the 
Applicant’s Property.  
 
 5) Routing Information.  Applicant agrees that it shall provide AGENCY with 
current routing information to Applicant’s Property in a form acceptable to AGENCY Fire 
Chief, and will endeavor to inform all occupants of subject Property of the proper 
procedures to follow in case of fire.  
 
 6) Access.  Applicant hereby specifically acknowledges that standard access 
roads sufficient to allow AGENCY fire equipment to reach the scenes of emergency 
calls are a significant factor in AGENCY’s ability to respond to emergency calls within a 
reasonable and expeditious time. If access roadways are not maintained by other public 
service agencies, the responsibility of providing and maintaining adequate access rests 
solely with Applicant. Applicant hereby agrees to hold AGENCY harmless from and to 
fully indemnify AGENCY for any liability or damages arising from any delay which might 
occur by reason of limited, inadequate or poorly maintained access, inadequate address 
or access description, or failure of Applicant or the Property to comply with applicable 
fire codes, building codes, zoning codes or recommendations or requirements made by 
any agency or AGENCY.  
 
 Applicant hereby grants to AGENCY the right of ingress and egress and to enter 
upon Applicant’s Property for purposes of conducting inspections to determine 
accessibility, and to observe any other matters which may affect AGENCY’s ability to 
provide services under this Agreement. Nothing herein shall be construed as requiring 
AGENCY to make any such inspection, or to require that AGENCY report to the 
Property owner in regard to any accessibility issues.  
 
 7) Compensation; Calculation; Payment.  As consideration for AGENCY’s 
provision of Emergency Services under this Agreement, Applicant shall pay to AGENCY 
a sum (the “Service Fee”) equal to the amount which would be paid if the Applicant’s 
Property was located in and taxable by the respective fire district (either the Central 
Yavapai Fire District or the Chino Valley Fire District) which would otherwise contract to 
provide such services to Applicant at that fire district’s then current tax rate, any 
applicable bond debt servicing rates, plus an administrative fee equal to $50.00 as 
modified from time to time. The Service Fee shall be owed to AGENCY by Applicant 
even if there is no current county tax assessed on the Property: by reason of the fact 
that the property is considered to be non-taxable; because no net assessed value has 

SAMPLE
ant hant 

sting weatting w
ty identificationy iden

tion, and access to on, and access to
e substantial distance substantial distance

y Applicant may exceed plicant may exc
of AGENCY, and that nCY, and th o 

O rating might apply to the apply to the 

es that it shall provide AGENCY witat it shall provide AGENCY wi
y in a form acceptable to AGENCY in a form acceptable to AGENC

pants of subject Property of the pants of subject Property of the 

by specifically acknowledges that staspecifically acknowledges that st
fire equipment to reach the scenefire equipment to rea

GENCYENCY’s ability to respond to emerbility to res
me. If access roadways are not mainf access roadways a

nsibility of providing and maintaininof providing and mai
plicant hereby agrees to hold AGEby agrees to hold AG

CY for any liability or damages arisinY for any liability or damages arisi
mited, inadequate or poorly maintaimited, inadequate or poorly main

ption, or failure of Applicant or the or failure of Applicant or the 
ding codes, zoning codes or recom, zoning codes or re

or AGENCYor A . 

Applicant hereby grants to AGENCYcant hereby grants to AGEN
n Applicant’s Property for purpoant’s Property for purpo

ccessibility, and to observe any othand to observe any ot
provide servicesprovide services under this Agreem under this Agree
AGENCY to make any such iAGENCY to make a
Property owner in regard to arega

7)7) Compensa CompensaSA
provision of Emergencprovision of Emer
a sum (the “Servica sum (the “Serv
Property was looperty was lo
Yavapai Fire Davapai Fire D

vide sud
abl



 

 4 

been established; or for any other reason. In that event, for the purpose of calculating 
the Service Fee to be paid by the Applicant, 10% of the full cash value as indicated by 
the county assessor’s office may be used as the assessed value, or if the full cash value 
is not available, the value of the property shall be established by way of appraisal 
conducted by a duly-licensed real estate appraiser provided by and solely at the cost of 
Applicant.  

 
If the property is appraised, the assessed value will be 10% of the appraisal. The 

then current fire district tax rate shall be applied to said property value, plus any then-
applicable bond debt service rates and an administrative fee equal to $50.00. If for 
some reason the current assessed value information is unavailable, then the Service 
Fee under this contract, as renewed, will be equal to the Service Fee charged for the 
immediately preceding service year, plus 10%, until such time as the current property 
value information becomes available, at which time the fee for the then-current year 
shall be recalculated and an adjustment to the Service Fee made. 
 
 Payment shall be due when this Agreement is signed; alternatively, payment 
arrangements may be approved in the sole discretion of AGENCY for quarterly 
payments with the first payment being due and payable simultaneous with the execution 
of this Agreement and thereafter on the first day of each subsequent quarter. Any 
payment not received within 30 days of the due date will be considered in default and 
may result in the termination of this Agreement. For the initial term of the Agreement, 
the parties agree that the fee shall be $«F17», but that such fee may be prorated 
(based on 12 months). 
 
 In the event of termination of this Agreement due to non-payment by Applicant of 
the agreed Service Fee within 30 days of due date, Applicant must reapply for 
Emergency Services pursuant to a new Agreement. In such event, the only option for 
payment under such new Agreement shall be for payment of all monies due in full at the 
time of execution of the new Agreement; other payment arrangements will only be 
considered upon renewal of the Agreement after completion of the initial term of the 
new Agreement.  
 
 The Service Fee paid to AGENCY by Applicant pursuant to this Agreement shall 
be considered earned by AGENCY when paid, and shall not be conditioned upon or 
modified by reason of the number of responses made by AGENCY to the Applicant’s 
property during the term of this Agreement. While Applicant shall be responsible for all 
Service Fees assessed under this Agreement, AGENCY also reserves the right to 
invoice any actual Service Recipients for the services provided under this Agreement 
according to the then-current fee schedule adopted by AGENCY, as amended from time 
to time. Said invoice shall be in addition to any Service Fee due under the terms of this 
Agreement. 
 
 8) Insurance.  Applicant shall provide AGENCY with a current certificate of 
liability and hazard insurance, together with the name and address of insurance agent, 
name of insurance company providing coverage, and insurance policy number.  
 

SAMPLE
f appap

at the cosat the 

of the appraisal. The of the appraisal. The
ty value, plus any then-alue, plus any th

ee equal to $50.00. If for to $50.00.
navailable, then the Serviceen the 

he Service Fee charged for thee Service Fee charged for the
such time as the current property uch time as the current property 

me the fee for the then-current yeae fee for the then-current ye
ervice Fee made. rvice Fee made.

Agreement is signed; alternatively, greement is signed; alternatively,
he sole discretion of AGENCY foe sole discretion of AGENCY f

due and payable simultaneous withue and payable simultaneous with
on the first day of each subsequon the first day of e

days of the due date will be considays of the due date 
of this Agreementhis Agreement. For the initial teFor 

fee shall be all be $«F17»$«F , but that sucbut th

of termination of this Agreement duetermination of this Agreement d
vice Fee within 30 days of due ee within 30 days of due 

rvices pursuant to a new Agreemesuant to a new Agre
der such new Agreement shall be foder such new Agreement shall be f

xecution of the new Agreement; oecution of the new Agree
ered upon renewal of the Agreemeupon renewal of the Agree

Agreementent. . 

 The Service Fee paid to AGThe Service Fee paid to AG
be considered earned by AGENbe considered earned
modified by reason of the nuon of
property during the term ofrty during the term
Service Fees assessedService Fees assessed
invoice any actual Seinvoice any actua
according to the theaccording to the t
to time. Said invtime. Said inv
Agreement. greement. 

8)



 

 5 

 9) Waiver and Disclaimer of Liability.  Applicant agrees that AGENCY shall 
not be liable for any consequential damages to Applicant or any Service Recipient, 
including but not limited to any lost income or profits suffered by Applicant or any 
Service Recipient. In consideration of AGENCY’s agreement to provide services under 
the terms of this Agreement, Applicant agrees to hold AGENCY harmless and hereby 
releases AGENCY from and indemnifies AGENCY for any and all claims, demands, 
liability and causes of action that may arise as a result of AGENCY providing the 
services described herein. Applicant specifically agrees to hold AGENCY harmless 
from, in addition to the foregoing, any claims, demands, liability or causes of action 
which might arise out of AGENCY’s inability to provide, or any delay or limits in 
providing services, due in whole or in part to the conditions spelled out in Sections 3, 4, 
5, and 6 of this Agreement.  
 

10) No Third-Party Beneficiaries.  This Agreement will be for the benefit of the 
parties named herein only and shall not be construed as having been entered into for 
the benefit of any third party.  

 
11) No Warranties.  Nothing herein shall be construed as a warranty by 

AGENCY against damages, whether to real property or personal property, which may 
result by way of fire, injury to a person, by accident or any other emergency occurring 
on Applicant’s Property.  

 
12) Limitation of Damages.  In the event of breach or non-performance by 

AGENCY, Applicant’s sole remedy shall be limited to the termination of this Agreement 
and refund of any unearned fees for that current contract year, the parties hereto having 
agreed that said fees are a reasonable amount of damages. This limitation of damages 
shall bind, without limitation, Service Recipients, family members, legal representatives, 
assigns and successors in interest of the Applicant. The waiver, hold harmless and 
indemnification provisions of this Agreement are for the benefit of AGENCY and shall 
survive the termination of this Agreement.  
 
 13) Termination.  Either party may terminate this Agreement by thirty (30) 
days’ written notice of termination delivered to the other party at these addresses:   
 

For AGENCY: 

Central Arizona Fire and Medical Authority 
8603 E. Eastridge Drive 
Prescott Valley, AZ 86314 
 
For Applicant: 
 
______________ 

______________ 
SAMPLE

vices ces
s and hers and 

aims, demandsaims, d
NCY providing the NCY providing the
AGENCY harmless AGENCY harmles

lity or causes of action or causes of ac
or any delay or limits in elay or lim

s spelled out in Sections 3, 4, Sections 3, 4, 

greement will be for the benefit of thment will be for the benefit of th
strued as having been entered intotrued as having been entered i

herein shall be construed as a wherein shall be construed as a 
to real property or personal properreal property or personal prope

rson, by accident or any other emeson, by accident or a

Damages.s.    In the event of breachIn the event of b

M
e remedy shall be limited to the terhall be limited to the t

arned fees for that current contract yrned fees for that current contract 
es are a reasonable amount of damaare a reasonable amount of da

t limitation, Service Recipients, famation, Service Recipients, fam
uccessors in interest of the Applicin interest of the A

ion provisions of this Agreement aon provisions of this Agreement a
e termination of this Agreementtermination of this Agreem . 

13) Termination.  Either partyTermination.  Either partAays’ written notice of termination delotice of termination de

For AGENCY: For AGENCY: 

Central Arizona FireCentral Arizona 
8603 E. Eastridge8603 E. Eastridg
Prescott Valleyt Va

For Applicr Applic

___



 

 6 

 
 In the event of termination of this Agreement after the Applicant has paid the 
required payment due for that term, AGENCY shall return funds to the Applicant 
prorated on a per day basis for the period after the date of termination.  
  
 In the event Applicant sells the subject property or otherwise disposes of the 
same, this Agreement will terminate immediately upon notification from the Applicant of 
same; provided, however, that the indemnification requirements imposed on Applicant 
under this Agreement for incidents occurring during the term of this Agreement shall 
survive the termination hereof. Nothing herein shall prevent AGENCY from negotiating a 
new emergency services Agreement with the new owner of the subject property.  
 
 14) Cancellation Due to Conflict.  AGENCY may cancel this Agreement 
pursuant to the mandates of A.R.S. §38-511. 

 
15) Severability.  If any provision of this Agreement shall be held to be 

unconstitutional, invalid, or unenforceable, it shall be deemed severable; however, the 
remainder of the Agreement shall not be affected and shall remain in full force and 
effect. 

 
16) Fire Code Compliance.  Applicant hereby specifically acknowledges that 

all operations and activities, as well as new construction, and remodel of structures 
when applicable, will be in compliance with AGENCY’s adopted Fire Code.  

The undersigned warrants to AGENCY that the Applicant has the power to enter 
into this Agreement and that all necessary acts have been taken to enter into this 
Agreement.  
 
 

CENTRAL ARIZONA FIRE & MEDICAL 
AUTHORITY 

APPLICANT 
 
 
By______________________________   
  Date Board Chair Date 
 
 
 
  ATTEST: 
 
By______________________________   
  Date  Board Clerk Date 
 
 

SAMPLE
e ApAp

se disposes of the e disposes of the
from the Applicant of rom the Applicant o

s imposed on Applicant posed on Applic
m of this Agreement shall Agreemen

t AGENCY from negotiating a m negotiating a 
of the subject propertyof the subject property. . 

ENCY may cancel this AgreemenY may cancel this Agreeme

on of this Agreement shall be hen of this Agreement shall be he
e, it shall be deemed severable; he, it shall be deemed severable; h

ot be affected and shall remain in be affected and shall remain in

pliance.  Applicant hereby specificace.  Applicant hereb

M
s, as well as new construction, anell as new constructi

n compliance with AGENCYe with AGENCY’’s adopts ado

ned warrants to AGENCY that the Aed warrants to AGENCY that th
ent and that all necessary acts hnd that all necessary acts h

PPLICANT 

By__________________________
  

______



22-23 23-24 24-25 25-26 26-27 Notes

APPARATUS-
Type 1 Engines Unit ID TYPE

2006 Rosenbauer w/ CAFS E-551  SURPLUS

   1500 GPM 104 Reserve  

2008 Rosenbauer E-662

   1500 GPM 106 Reserve

2006 Rosenbauer w/ CAFS E-57  SURPLUS

   1500 GPM 105 Front Line

2007 Rosenbauer w/ CAFS E-540

   1500 GPM 107 Front Line

2009 Rosenbauer E-51 RESERVE  SURPLUS

   1500 GPM 108 Front Line

2010 Rosenbauer E-63  

   1500 GPM 109 Front Line  

2013 Rosenbauer E-50 RESERVE

   1500 GPM 110 Front Line  $1,095,000

2013 Rosenbauer E-59  RESERVE

   1500 GPM 111 Front Line   $1,138,000

2016 Rosenbauer E-53 RESERVE

   1500 GPM 112 Front Line $1,150,000

2017 Rosenbauer E-62

   1500 GPM 113 Front Line

2017 Rosenbauer E-54

   1500 GPM 114 Front Line

2020 Rosenbauer E-58 TBD

   1500 GPM 115 Front Line

2020 Rosenbauer E-61 TBD

   1500 GPM 116 Front Line

APPARATUS - 
Truck Co

New 
Unit ID TYPE

2017 Rosenbauer T-50 TBD

   Aerial 200 Front Line

APPARATUS - 
Type 3 Engines

New 
Unit ID TYPE

2013 Rosenbauer - Wildland E-55

   Type 3 4x4, 750 GPM 301 Front Line

2018 Rosenbauer - Wildland E-66 TBD

   Type 3 4x4, 750 GPM 302 Front Line

APPARATUS - 
Type 6 Engines

New 
Unit ID TYPE

2000 Ford 550 P-52

    4x4 601 Front Line

2000 Ford F-350 P-63 REPLACE

CENTRAL ARIZONA FIRE and MEDICAL AUTHORITY
MAJOR CAPITAL ACQUISITION / REPLACEMENT SCHEDULE

UPDATED March 2023
Fiscal Year:



    4x4 600 Front Line $144,814

2000 Ford 550 P-57 REPLACE

    4x4 602 Front Line $152,054

2007 Ford 550 P-59 REPLACE

    4x4 603 Front Line $167,641

2007 Ford F-550 P-62 REPLACE

    4x4 604 Front Line $167,641

2008 Dodge 5500 P-61 REPLACE

    4x4 605 Front Line $172,670

2012 Dodge RAM 5500 P-54 TBD

    4x4 606 Front Line

2014 Ford 550 P-53 TBD

    4x4 607 Front Line

2019 Dodge Ram 5500  TBD

    4x4 608 Front Line

APPARATUS-
Water Tenders

New 
Unit ID TYPE

1980 AutoCar WT-57 REFURBISH

   3600 Gal.    400 Front Line $150,000

1980 AutoCar WT-54 REFURBISH

   3600 Gal.     401 Front Line $150,000

1994 Ford L9000  WT-63 REPLACE

   4000 Gal. 402 Front Line $393,928

1999 Central States WT-53 TBD

   3500 Gal.      403 Front Line

2002 Central States WT-51 TBD

   3600 Gal.      404 Front Line

2008 Rosenbauer WT-62 TBD

   3400 Gal. 406 Front Line

2008 Rosenbauer WT-61 TBD

   3400 Gal. 405 Front Line

2011 Rosenbauer WT-59 TBD

   3500 Gal.      407 Front Line

2013 Rosenbauer WT-52 TBD

   1800 Gal.    408 Front Line

2013 Rosenbauer WT-56 TBD

   1800 Gal.      409 Front Line

New WT - New Station Projected TBD

   3500 Gal.      

APPARATUS - 
Support Units

New 
Unit ID TYPE

1997 Ford Van Rescue  SURPLUS

   Rescue - Reserve 700 Reserve  

1991 Ford Utility TRT-58 REPLACE REPLACE

   Vehicle 701 Front Line $200,000 $200,000

2002 Ford Truck Rescue SURPLUS TBD

    Rescue - Reserve 702 Reserve



2015 HAZ MAT Response 75/58 TBD

   Joint PFD Funding 704 HAZ MAT

2012 International Rosenbauer UT-61 TBD

   Utility Vehicle 705 Front Line

2008 Chevy R-53  RESERVE

   Rescue 708 Front Line  

2020 Ford F-450 R-62  TBD

   Rescue 709 Front Line  

2020 Ford F-450 R-58  TBD

   Rescue 710 Front Line  

APPARATUS - 
UTV's

New 
Unit ID TYPE

2004 Bobcat CARTA TBD

   UTV 800

2010 Polaris Razor Tech Serv  TBD

   UTV - Tracks 801  

2018 Polaris Ranger Station 50 TBD

   UTV 803 Ops

2020 Polaris Ranger Station 61 TBD

   UTV 804 Ops/WLD

2021 Polaris Ranger 540

   UTV 805 Ops/WLD $28,350

2022 Polaris Ranger Station 63

   UTV 806 Ops/WLD $28,350

Utility Trailer Station 61  

   For UTV 1011 Ops/WLD  

Utility Trailer 540  

   For UTV 1012 Ops/WLD $5,000

APPARATUS - 
Other Equipment

New 
Unit ID TYPE

2010 Diesel Forklift CARTA    TBD

   Gradall - Extended 900    

2010 Electric Forklift CARTA

   Nauman Hobbs 901

2017 Propane Forklift Warehouse TBD

   Toyota 903

Scissor Lift and Trailer Facilities   TBD

   Facilities Maintenance 902   

2020 Propane Forklift Facilities  

   Toyota 904  

  

STAFF VEHICLES - 
Admin

New 
Unit ID TYPE

2023 Chevy Traverse - New Community

   AWD Relations $50,000

2008 Toyota Highlander
556 Admin TBD



STAFF VEHICLES - 
Chiefs

New 
Unit ID TYPE

2019 Chevy Impala Fire Chief

587 Admin

2019 Chevy Impala ADM Chief

588 Admin

2021 Chevy Tahoe OPS Chief

   4x4 505 Front Line

2021 Chevy Tahoe P&L Chief

   4x4 506 Front Line

STAFF/SUPPORT VEHICLES - 
CARTA

New 
Unit ID TYPE

2020 Dodge 2500 4X4 Trng Chief

   Ram Truck 501 Front Line TBD

2019 Dodge 2500 4X4 Trng Capt

   Ram Truck 519 Front Line TBD

2004 Ford F-250 CARTA TBD

    4x4                 538 Fuel Truck RESERVE

STAFF VEHICLES - Facilities
New 

Unit ID TYPE
2012 Dodge Facl Tech

    4 x 4 565 Front Line $55,000

2020 Dodge 2500 4X4 Facl Mngr

   Ram Truck 502 Front Line

STAFF VEHICLES - EMS
New 

Unit ID TYPE
2013 Chevy Tahoe EMS Cptn.

    4x4 572 Front Line $55,000

2019 Chevy Traverse Comm. CEP

   AWD 518 Front Line

STAFF VEHICLES - Fleet
New 

Unit ID TYPE
2018 Dodge 2500 Fleet TBD

   4x4 585 Manager

2010 Chevy 2500 Mech. 51

   4x4     561 Front Line $55,000

2007 Dodge 2500 Mech. 52

   4x4         555 Front Line   $60,000

2019 Dodge 2500 Mech. 53

   4x4 554 Front Line

2020 Dodge 2500 Mech 54

   4x4 504 Front Line

STAFF/SUPPORT VEHICLES - 
Operations

New 
Unit ID TYPE

2010 Chevy Tahoe Station 53  SURPLUS

   2 WD 560 Ops   $50,615



2013 Chevy 2500 Batt 3 RESERVE

    4 x 4 571 Front Line $90,000

2020 Chevy 2500 Batt 6

   4x4 500 Front Line

STAFF VEHICLES - 
Prevention

New 
Unit ID TYPE

2022 Dodge Ram Prev. 52  

  4x4 2500 582 Front Line  

2022 Dodge Ram Prev. 54   

  4x4 2500 583 Front Line   

2010 Chevy Tahoe Prev. 51  RESERVE

    4 x 4 559 Front Line  $60,000

2016 Chevy Tahoe Prev. 5 TBD

   4x4 581 Front Line

2010 Chevy Tahoe Prev. 53 RESERVE TBD

   4x4 Truck 559 Front Line  $60,000

STAFF VEHICLES - 
Tech Services

New 
Unit ID TYPE

2022 Dodge Ram Tech Mngr  

  4 x 4 2500 577 Front Line  

2010 Dodge Ram Radio Tech  RESERVE

    4 x 4 562 Front Line   $60,000

2015 Dodge Ram 2500 Radio Tech RESERVE

    4x4 579 Front Line  $60,000

2015 Chevy Silverado IT Tech

   4x4 (Yavapai County Vehicle) 576 Front Line

STAFF/SUPPORT VEHICLES - 
Warehouse

New 
Unit ID TYPE

2020 Dodge Ram 2500 Whse Mngr

   4x4 Truck 503 Front Line

1996 Dodge Warehouse

     1 Ton 4x4    508 Delivery

2004 Ford F-250 Warehouse SURPLUS

    4x4                 543 Front Line

STAFF/SUPPORT VEHICLES - 
Wildland

New 
Unit ID TYPE

2003 Ford F-250 537 Batt 3 / LM SURPLUS

    4x4 Reserve $60,000

2006 Ford F-150 549 Batt 6 /LM SURPLUS

    4x4          Reserve $60,000

2009 Dodge Ram 2500 558 Wildland  RESERVE

    4x4 2nd Out  $66,000

2019 Dodge Ram 2500 PW 557 Wildland

   4x4 1st Out

2023 Dodge Ram 2500 - New  Wildland



   4x4 1st Out   

STAFF VEHICLES - Reserves
New 

Unit ID TYPE
2013 Chevy Tahoe Reserve  

    4x4 570   

2007 Chevy Tahoe Reserve

    4 x 4         550  

2005 Ford F-150 Reserve SURPLUS   

    4 x 4          545    

STAFF VEHICLES - Surplus
New 

Unit ID TYPE
2003 Ford F-250 537 Batt 3 / LM

    4x4 Reserve

2006 Ford F-150 549 Batt 6 /LM

    4x4          Reserve

2004 Ford F-250 Warehouse  

    4x4                 543 Front Line

STATIONS / FACILITIES Total
Station 63 St. 63 $800,000  

Station 59 apparatus building St. 59 $350,000

New Station St. $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Parking lots $100,000

Extrication Tools $28,547 $30,000 $30,831

TIC replacement Plan $21,218 $22,660

Communications/IT $150,000

Move Up Software (Deccan) $70,000

Opticom Equipment - New $140,000 $0 $0

Radio Equip for new engines $30,000  $15,000

Radio Equip for new Brush Trucks $12,000

Radio Equip for new Non-Ops Staff Vehicles $7,500 $6,000 $6,000 $6,000

Radio Equip for new Ops Staff Vehicles $19,500 $14,000
Station Generators $67,500 $55,000

Operating Budget Expenditures $845,000 $1,000,000 $1,200,000 $1,400,000 $1,600,000

Capital Res. Acct. Expenditures $791,465 $507,114 $791,742 $494,846 $15,201

EXPENDITURE TOTAL $1,636,465 $1,507,114 $1,991,742 $1,894,846 $1,615,201

$7,766,236 $7,499,771 $7,517,657 $7,250,914 $7,281,069

($266,465) $17,886 ($266,742) $30,154 $509,799

$7,499,771 $7,517,657 $7,250,914 $7,281,069 $7,790,868

Replacement Guidelines:
The fleet is evaluated on an annual basis to determine which vehicles, due to their current usage, condition and projected
 future use, need to be replaced. (Minimum 10 years of front line)
Staff vehicles are expected to serve in front line capacity for 160,000 miles.
*Assumes a $500,000 per year contribution and $25,000 per year interest earning minus the projected Capital 
Reserve Account Expenditures.

Projected Contribution/Distrib.*
CAPITAL RESERVE TOTAL

Capital Reserve Balance


